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Division of Finance and Business Operations
	
	Procurement & Strategic Sourcing  

5700 Cass Avenue, suite 4200

Detroit, Michigan   48202

(313) 577-3734 

FAX (313) 577-3747


September 30, 2013
Minutes of the Pre-bid Conference

RFP Procurement Card Services dated September 16, 2013 
The pre-bid conference for the Procurement Card Services was held on September 24, 2013 at 11:30 a.m. Michael Gleason reviewed the expectations and scope of work, and the administrative requirements of the pre-bid package, especially concerning details such as bid due dates and who vendors may contact during the live bid process. 

The pre-bid conference attendees sign in sheet and meeting minutes are available for downloading from the University Purchasing Web Site at http://www.forms.purchasing.wayne.edu/Adv_bid/Adv_bid.html.
Numerous simple questions and answers were addressed at the pre-bid meeting. Some of the issues were as follows: 
· The University monthly spend is approximately $800,000, and is limited to Card Holder activity and a modest amount of Ghost Card activity.
· PNC (formerly National City) is the current card provider
· The University needs to have the ability to limit MCC Codes minimally 2 ways
· Globally across the University
· Individually by specific cardholder
· The University must have the ability to set Transaction Limits by transaction and my month.  The current limits are:
· $2,000 per transaction
· $20,000 per Month
In addition, the University Procurement Card Administrators must have the ability to override these limits within the Vendor’s system.
· The Vendor must be able to provide a Flat File extract of University activity, to be used for our own internal charging / cost distribution.
· The approval process for new card requests is currently a manual system within Wayne State, and there are no immediate plans to change this.
· Please provide the Foreign Currency Fee as part of your fee schedule
· The University Procurement Card Administrators must have an accessible audit trail of cardholder activity.

· The Vendors system must include detailed level 3 reporting that can be used by the University for spend analytics.

· The University is considering the possibility of adding Accounts Payable cards and/or Buyer Cards to the program at a later date.  However, there is no guarantee that this will take place.
· Cards must be customized using a design to be prepared by the University Marketing Department.  Cards will change in appearance from the current burgundy card.

· Vendors should provide details on the card holder dispute resolution process.

· Any rebate program must be spelled out in Schedule C and must be clear and concise.

· Cards are to be delivered internally within the campus directly to the Card Holder.  The University will discontinue the practice of delivering them centrally to Procurement for pick-up by the new card holder.

· The Deadline for RFP related questions was extended to October 02, 2013, 12:00 noon.
· Bids due date was extended to October 09, 2013 at 4:00 pm, to be time date stamped in Procurement & Strategic Sourcing located in the Academic/ Administration Bldg., 5700 Cass Avenue, 4th Floor – Suite 4200, Detroit, MI 48202. 

· We will require an original plus one copy (2 total) of your proposal.  In addition, an electronic version is required, which should be submitted to our secure mailbox at rfp@wayne.edu
· Any responses, materials, correspondence, or documents provided to the University are subject to the State of Michigan Freedom of Information Act and may be released to third parties in compliance with that Act, regardless of notations in the VENDOR's Proposal to the contrary.

Additional clarifications below for questions received via email:

1) Question: Can we exclude our contract and appendices from the 50 page limit for the proposal.

Answer: Sample Reports, example documents, and draft contract can be excluded from the 50 page limit

2) Question: Do you have faculty that travel overseas that will require a local currency card?  Could we please have additional clarification on this question.

Answer:   We do have faculty that travel overseas, but they will NOT need a local currency card.  The issued pcard should be sufficient for supply/service purchases abroad.  A majority of all international transaction will originate in the US.

3) Question: Do you use a virtual card program for payables management? Has this opportunity ever been explored?

Answer:  We have used a ghost card solution in very specific scenarios.  We will be looking to expand of pcard use to A/P after selecting a card provider.

4) Question: What is your mix of check, ACH, Card.

Answer: 85% check, 15% ACH

5) Question: Are you interested in growing your purchasing card program? 

Answer: Yes.  We will be looking to expand to A/P and Buyer issued procards

6) Question: What is the University’s total A/P spend (non-payroll).

Answer: $480 mil with roughly 130,000 invoice transactions.

7) Question: What is the current scope of the program for Purchasing Card? Is it for all transactions below a certain dollar amount?

Answer: The current pcard program is 1400 active cards circulating for faculty and staff.  The transaction limit is $2,000 with a monthly limit of $20,000

8) Question: What percentage of your current program spend qualifies for “Large Ticket Interchange” (LTI).

Answer: None.  While this is available to us, we don’t currently take advantage of it with our card transaction limit and lack of A/P solution.

9) Question: What are the current billing and payment terms utilized by the University? Does the University expedite payment faster than the terms?

Answer:  We are billed every 28 days, and our payment terms are 30 days.  We do NOT currently expedite payments, but may entertain this when considering rebate incentives vs. investment opportunities

10) Question: Schedule E – Detailed Vendor Questions, Section A – Service, Can you clarify “Service Standards”? (i.e. internal operations standards, or SLA’s)

Answer:  Please include a copy our your standard service agreement including 24-hour customer service, dispute resolution timeframe, declined transaction resolution, etc.

11) Question: Section C – Operations and Technology, What types of feeds does the University use today?  How are they sent to the University and what is the preferred format?

Answer: We currently consume a direct feed from VISA (.vcf format) which is deposited on our server and push to our internal expense reporting tool.  This expense reporting tool functions similar to concur and handles the monthly feed process to our Banner ERP.

12) Question: Section E – Spend Controls/Security,  Please clarify the request around liability protection?  Are you referring to Corporate Liability Waiver insurance for internal/faculty misuse of the program? Has the University incurred issues here in the past?

Answer: Please include information regarding any basic liability protection against external fraud.  The University will be entering into to a standard corporate liability agreement with the selected card provider.  Internal misuse by faculty and staff will be handled internally and independently by the University. 

13) Question: Section F – Tax, Is this for US Faculty traveling to Canada and how GST is reported?

Answer: It is believed that both Mastercard and VISA platforms provider line item detail regarding GST.  As long as the online reporting tools allow for easy extract of this data, no additional insight is needed.

14) Question:  Is the procurement card used for travel related expenses? Do some faculty members carry both a T & E and P-card?

Answer:  No, the university has a separate Travel Card Program for travel related expenses.  Faculty and staff are required to apply for both as needed.

15) Question: Financial Incentives – would you prefer incentive up-front or in annual rebate or combination of both?

Answer: Annual Rebate preferred. Quarterly reporting estimates appreciated.
16) What are your programs statistics?

1. Average Transaction Amount: $240.00
2. Average Annual Spend: $11 mil
3. LTI percentage: 0% and/or negligible

4. Number of Cards: 1400

5. Contract Terms: 28 day billing / 30 day payment (please include options in your offering)

All questions concerning this project must be emailed to: Michael Gleason, Procurement & Strategic Sourcing at 313-577-3743 Email: ao4941@wayne.edu (copy to Kenneth Doherty, Email:  ac0578@wayne.edu) by 12:00 p.m., October 02, 2013.  

Do not contact the Cash Management, or other University Units, directly as this may result in disqualification of your proposal.
Thank you
Michael Gleason, 

Associate Director, Purchasing





313-577-3743
CC:
William Murphy, Kenneth Doherty, Attendees list.
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